IP;earptown-7—41 Survey District Ca. 1840-1910
Private

The survey district of Kemptown encompasses about 10 acres on both sides of
Fingerboard Road near the intersection of Kemptown Church Road, and includes
the center of the village developed from about 1840 to the first decade of the
20th century. The kuildings are mostly residential, with three surviving
camercial buildings, the Lewis Cabinet Shop (F-7-8), a log building of about
1840, the Kemptown Store of about 1897-1900, which is still in use as a
convenience store, and the Brandenburg Store and Residence (F-7-115) of about
1900. The residences reflect the two major periods of growth, the second
quarter of the 19th century and the period 1875-1910, in their materials and
design. The early group includes two-story vernacular log and frame houses
with 3 or 4 bays, one-story porches, gable roofs, interior chimneys, and rear
wings. The later group includes several good examples of the Queen Anne style,
characterized by irregularly massed plans, varied rooflines, multiple gables,
extensive verandas and porches, and elaborate decorative trim. Examples of the
early group of vernacular houses are the John T. Lewis House (F-7-10) of about
1840 and 12507 Fingerboard Road. The Queen Anne style houses are the best
concentration of this style in the Urbana Region and include the Otho Fout
House (F-7-107), the William Iewis House, 12449 Fingerboard Road, and the
Washington Day House, 12519 Fingerboard. The district also includes a
commnity hall built in 1899 later used as a fraternal lodge hall and converted

to a residence in 1956.
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HISTORTC CONTEXT:

MARYIAND COMPREHENSIVE HISTORIC PRESERVATION PLAN DATA

Geographic Organization: Piedmont
(Harford, Baltimore, Carroll, Frederick, Howard, Montgamery
Counties, and Baltimore City)

Chronological/Development Period:
Agricultural-Industrial Transition, A.D. 1815-1870
Industrial/Urban Dominance, A.D. 1870-1930

Prehistoric/Historic Period Themes:
Architecture, Landscape Architecture and Commmnity Planning
Econamics (Commercial)
Social/Educational/Cultural

Resource Types:
Category: District
Historic Enviromment: Village

Historic Function and Use:
Damestic/single dwelling/residence
Damestic/secondary structure/smokehouse
Damestic/secondary structure/garage
Damestic/secondary structure/other dependencies
Commerce/trade/department store/general store
Cammerce/trade/specialty store
Social/meeting hall/hall of other fraternal organization

Known Design Source: None
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1. Name

(indicate preferred name)

historic Kemptown Survey District

and/or common

2. Location

street & number 12440-12600 Fingerboard Road

____not for publication

city, town Kemptown ____ vicinity of congressional district  6th
state Maryland county Frederick
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
X district —_ pubiic _X occupied —__ agricuiture _____ museum
— building(s) X _ private —x_unoccupied X commercial ___ park
— structure — both —__ work in progress — educational _X_ private residence
— _ site Public Acquisition Accessible —— entertainment — religious
—— object ____in process _X_vyes: restricted —___government ____scientific
- being considered ____ yes: unrestricted —__industrial ____transportation
_x not applicable _ po ___ military ___other:

4. Owner of Property (ive names and

mailing addresses of all owners)

name Multiple property owners

street & number

telephone no.:

city, town

state and zip code

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Frederick County Courthouse liber
street & number 100 W. Patrick Street folio
Frederick MD 21701

city, town

state

6. Representation in Existing nistorical surveys

F-7-8;

title MHT Inventory of Historic Properties

7-10; 7-107; 7-112; 7-114; 7-115

date 1977-1978

__ federal _X state

-—

spository for survey records Md. SHPO

city,town Crownsville

state Md.

—_county ____ local



7. Description Survey No. F-7-41

Condition Check one Check one

X__ excellent __deteriorated __ unaltered _X_original site

X _good —ruins X __ altered — _moved date of move
_X_fair ____ unexposed

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its
various elements as it exists today.

CONTRIBUTING RESOURCE QOUNT: 45

Kemptown's Survey District encampasses a;proxjmtely 10 acres along the north
and south sides of Fingerboard Road (Md. 80) in the center of the village, a
predommantly residential linear commmnity developed from about 1840 to about 1910
in the southeastern section of Frederick County, Maryland. The village is about one

district, a road 1leading southwest to Providence Methodist Protestant Chwarch
(F-7-111), an 1872 frame church not included in the district because of its
isolation from the main concentration of the village. The district contains mostly
log and frame residences built from about 1840 to about 1910, in vernacular and
Queen Anne styles, and three contributing commercial structures, one of which is a
circa 1900 general store still operated as a convenience store. The other two are
an unoccupied log cabinetmaker's shop of about 1840-1850 and a frame store amd
residence combination of about 1900 which is now entirely residential. An 1899
canmmnity hall/fraternal lodge is also currently a residence. Several good exanples
of the Queen Anne style are included in the district, including the Otho Fout House
(F-7-107), the William T. Lewis House, and the Washington Day House. The district
also has several domestic outbuildings of the mid to late 19th century, mostly frame
summer Kkitchens, smoke and meat houses, stables, carriage houses, and a vari
sheds. The bwtgrazpsareassomatedmﬂmtheothontstearﬂtheWashmgi
Day House, which have buildings erected in the 1880's and 1890's at the same time as
the residences. An early 20th century dwelling at the east end of the district, the
Williams House (F-7-114), has a windmill located behind the house. There are three
major non-contributing structures, two modern residences and a garage. Dates of the
buildings are based on architectural details, land records, and Memories of Kemptown
(1989), a local history published by the Providence United Methodist Church.

The survey district is closely built, with few open spaces between the lots,
most of which are 1/2 to 1 acre in area. The buildings face Fingerboard Road,
historically called the New Market to Damascus Road or the Monrovia-Damascus Road.
The west end of the survey district is adjoined by modern residences and the visible
change in architectural style is prominent. At the east end of the district, the
Williams House and 12539 Fingerboard Road are the last buildings near the road,
resulting in another definite visual stop to the district. Following are brief
descriptions of the major structures in the district:

Lewis Cabinet Shop (F-7-8): The one-story exposed log shop stands on the south side
of Fingerboard Road at the west end of the survey district. It is a small
rectangular building with two 4-panel doars with three-light transams on the north
elevation, flanked by 6/6 windows in the outer bays. The east and west gable ends
have weatherboarded gables, in deteriorated condition, and a single off-center 6/6
window in each end. The gable roof is covered with corrugated metal, also in
deteriorated condition. A frame shed addition is on the south elevation. The shop
was probably built about 1840 by Jeremiah Lewis, a cabinetmaker and, as was common
in rural communities in the 18th and 19th centuries, the village's undertaker. I



8. Significance Survey No. F-7-41

Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below
—— prehistoric ___ archeology-prehistoric _X_community planning ____ landscape architecture____ religion
—_1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic —__conservation — law ——science
1500-1599 ____ agriculture - economics — literature — sculpture
—_1600-1699 _X _architecture —_ education —_ military X _social/
— _1700-1799 ____ art —_engineering — music humanitarian
X 1800-1899 _X _commerce ___ exploration/settlement ____ philosophy —— theater
X 1900~ —__ communications — industry — politics/government ___ transportation
—__invention — other (specify)
Specific dates C. 1840-1910 Builder/Architect
check: Applicable Criteria: xA _ B XC _ D
and/or
Applicable Exception: _ A _ B _C _D _E _F _G
Level of Significance: _ national __state x local

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and
SUPPOREMptown's Survey District exemplifies the development of a linear commmity
from about 1840 to 1910, incorporating vernacular and high-style residential and
commercial architecture. The village was probably established by 1840, although
local tradition and land records show that Solamon Kemp built a house and a
blacksmith shop near the present intersection of Fingerboard and Kemptown Church
Road about 1836. In the same year, the Providence Methoadist Protestant Chwirch was
founded and purchased a part of the "Snakeroot Thicket" tract on which the village
was mostly developed afterwards. The church was located same distance off the main
road to which the village was oriented, the road linking Urbana, Monrovia, and New
Market with Damascus in Montgomery County. The area swrrounding the village
=omained rural and in agricultural use until the mid-20th century. The present 1872
arch and its adjoining cemetery (F-7-111) are still isolated fram the swrvey
district, although some modern infill housing has been built between the district
and the church. The survey district contains principally log and frame residences,
with three remaining commercial structures. One of these is the log Lewis Cabinet
Shop (F-7-8), a building dating fram the earliest period of the village's
development, about 1840. The circa 1895-1900 frame store, now the Kemptown Store,
is the only active cammercial structure. The third store, the Brandenburg Store
(F-7-115), is a circa 1900 building adjoining a residence of the same date and both
sections are ocurrently residential. A former cammnity hall and fraternal lodge
meeting hall of about 1899 (F-7-112) is also used as a residence.

The architecture of the buildings is clearly defined in two periods, the second
and fourth quarters of the 19th century, with some buildings dating into the first
decade of the 20th century. The second quarter buildings are vermacular in plan,
design, and details, with log structure in whole or in part, and most have modern
artificial siding. They are characterized by three or four bay main elevations,
gable roofs, interior end chimneys, one-story porches on the facades, and
perpendicular rear wings. Many have small log and frame damestic outbuildings.
These buildings are typical of most of the villages in Frederick County of the same
period of development and are similar to dwellings on the surrounding farmsteads.
Examples of this period are the John T. lLewis House (F-7-10), and 12507, 12520, and
12539 Fingerboard Road. The huildings from the last quarter of the 19th century
reflect the greater general prosperity of agriculturally-based cammmnities and the
improved building technology of the period. The predominant style is the Queen
Anne, featuring large, irregularly massed dwellings with prominent rooflines with

ltiple gables, polygonal bays, central chimneys, extensive verandas, and varied
wurface finishes and trim. Kemptown has the best concentration of this style in the



9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No. F-7-41

Bond, Isaac. Map of Frederick County, 1858.

Land Records of Frederick County.
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10. Geographical Data

10 acres

Acreage of nominated property
Quadrangle name ___ Urbana, Md. Quadrangle scale __1:24000
UTM References (o NOT complete UTM references
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Verbal boundary description and justification

Approximately 10 acres as shown on the attached quad map section.

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county code

state code county code

11. Form Prepared By

name/titte Janet L. Davis, Historic Sites Surveyor

organization Frederick County Planning & Zoning Dept. date December 1993

street & number 12 E. Church Street telephone 696-2958

city or town Frederick state MD 21701

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by
an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be found in the Annotated
Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement.

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and
record purposes only and do not constitute any infringement of

individual property rights.

return to: -
MARYLAND HiS‘i‘cf‘;.’{ﬁ\L RN
DHCP/DHCD }
100 COMMUNITY P._ACc o
CROWNSVILLE. MD 2 1032-2023
' 5147600 PS-2746




Kemptown Survey District Survey No. F-7-41
Frederick County

7.1 Description (Contirued)

at least some period of time in the mid-19th century, the log building
apparently housed the post office, according to Miss Maxine Browning, a local
historian. One of the two doors opened to the shop and the other to the post
office.

Otho Fout House (F-7-107), 12444 Fingerboard Road: The most elaborate example
of the Queen Anne style in Kemptown, the Fout House was built about 1881. His
son Raymond was the local physician in the late 19th century, with his office
in the house and his residence at 12526 Fingerboard. At least two subsequent
local doctors, Sellman and Kuhlman, also had their medical office at the Fout
House. The huilding has a five-bay facade with double cross gables, a
frequently seen feature of houses in the southeastern Urbana Region. The
exterior is german siding and the roof is standing seam metal. The most
distinctive feature of the house is the elaborate one-story porch on the south
elevation. Turned spindle friezes extend between the square posts and the flat
roof of the porch is edged with a scroll-sawn balustrade punctuated by
finial-topped posts. The balustrade curves at the ends to meet the wall of the
house. At the rear of the house is a small group of damestic outhuildings
erected at the same time as the dwelling. A small frame barn with a carrugated
metal roof and a central metal ventilator has german siding and an overhanging
hay loft with louvred arched vents. An ogee bargeboard is repeated on the
adjacent frame carriage house, also with german siding and a louvred arched
vent above the double swing doors. Near the house are a two-story frame summer
kitchen with german siding, an interior end chimney and a carrugated metal roof
and a one-story frame meathouse with the same exterior materials and an
extended gable roof over the door on the south elevation.

John T. Lewis House (F-7-10), 12448 Fingerboard: The 1-1/2 story log dwelling
may have been built about 1840 by John T. Lewis. It has german and
weatherboard siding and a composition roof with a shed dormer added late in the
19th century. A one-story porch extends across the south elevation. The first
story has three bays with replacement modern sash. A one-story shed addition
is on the west gable erd. According to the 1989 local history booklet
published by the Providence Methodist Church, this house was the site of a
visit by Abraham Lincoln during the Civil War. Li.ncoln was allegedly evacuated
from Washington when a raid was threatened and his party stopped along the road
to water their horses in the village trough which stood in front of the house.
Iewis invited Lincoln to dine and eventually to stay overnight, offers which
were accepted. Although no verification of the story has been discovered, the
story has been a long-standing family tradition among the descendants of John
T. Lewis and the chair and bed used by Lincoln were retained by members of the
family no longer living in Frederick County.

William ILewis House, 12449 Fingerboard: Iocated on the south side of
Fingerboard across the road from the John T. Lewis House is the two-story Queen
Anne house built about 1878-1880 by William T. lewis. It has the double cross
gable feature common to many houses in the Urbana Region and to the Kemptown
Survey District. The corner property has two additional gables on the east
end, facing Kemptown Church Road and the Boyer House at 12501 Fingerboard, a
virtual duplicate of the lewis House in design. The Lewis House has a central




Kemptown Survey District Survey No. F-7-41
Frederick County

7.2 Description (Continued)

"widow's walk", a sguare platform at the center of the roof with a scroll-sawn
balustrade, a feature which seldam survives intact in mid to late 19th century
houses in the rural areas of Frederick County. The exterior is covered with
vinyl siding and the roof is standing seam metal. The five-bay north elevation
has Queen Anne windows with multiple panes bordering the central panels. The
windows have segmental arches and replacement shutters flank the openings.
Each gable has a pointed arched window. A one-story porch with turned columns
extends on both the north and east sides of the house. A polygonal one-story
bay is on the east side of the main section of the house.

Boyer House, 12501 Fingerboard: As stated in the preceding paragraph, this
house was probably built at about the same time as the Lewis House across
Kemptown Church Road. The builder was probably Greenberry Baker in about 1880
and it was purchased in 1883 by Joseph Dupuy, but was ordered sold in 1885 in
an equity case. Wesley Boyer was the purchaser and he retained it until 1913.
Fram 1916 to 1945, the house was the Methodist Parsonage. It has asbestos
shingle siding and a corrugated metal roof. The windows have segmental arches
as in the Iewis house, hxtmﬂ:l/lsashnsteadofﬂn@zeenl\mwewnﬂmrs
The original 1louvred shutters are still in place. The roof has no indication
of a widow's walk having been part of the design. Interior end chimneys rise
at the east and west elevations. The one-story porch is samewhat smaller than
the lewis House, and does not extend around the corner to the west elevation.
The polygonal bay window is present and the two-story rear wing has a separate
porch. The house has a frame garage and a frame chicken house behind it, both
probably built in the period about 1900-1925.

Kemptown Store, 12516 Fingerboard: The one-story frame store has been
considerably altered since it was built about 1895-1900. The rectangular
building has a gable facade with a modern shed porch on the south. Display
windows flanking the center door are replacements of the probable plate glass
windows and are largely obscured by vending machines and signs on the porch.
The exterior is covered with vinyl siding and the roof is corrugated metal.
The interior has a few shelves lining the walls which appear to be ariginal,
but much of the interior fixtures have been replaced. Additions have also been
made to the storage rooms at the rear of the store. Gas pumps at the edge of
the road are surrounded by an extensive paved parking lot. A store is shown on
the 1873 Titus Atlas map near this site, but the extant structure has the
appearance of a rural general store of the turn of the century and probably
replaced an earlier commercial structure near the site.

Washington Day House, 12519 Fingerboard: The Day House was built about
1887-1888 by Washington Day and his father-in-law, William Boyer, and the
design in the Queen Anne style was built as a double house for occupancy by Day
and his family and Boyer. It has a cross-shaped gabled roof of standing seam
metal and german siding with diagonal overlays of decorative boards in the many
gables, resembling the half-timbering which was a frequently used decorative
feature of the Queen Anne style. The north elevation has a single large gable
with a one-story porch. Both the porch and the main gable have the
half-timbered effect. The segmental arched windows are in pairs with original
shutters flanking most openings. On the south elevation is a second porch with




Kemptown Survey District Survey No. F-7-41
Frederick County

7.3 Description (Continued)

a smaller gable. In the main gables just below the diagonals are a pair of
multiple-paned square windows. The use of varied window styles in a single
structure is also a common characteristic of the Queen Amne style. When sold
to Washington's wife Susannah (spelled ILuanah in same records) in 1893 as a
result of a family dispute between Boyer and the Days, the property had a frame
stable, meat house, and carriage house. These structures remain in a group
just south of the house, along with several other sheds which were apparently
built as part of a poultry supply business operated in the 1920's by a
subsequent owner, Warren Davis.

Kemptown Commmity Hall/J.0.U.A.M. Hall (F-7-112), 12524 Fingerboard: The
one-story frame, gable-front building has been a residence since 1956. It has
vinyl siding and a corrugated metal roof. The south elevation has three bays
with paired modern windows flanking the center entrance under a small canopy
hocod. A 2/2 pointed-arch window is in the front gable. Additions have also
been made to the rear elevation. The building was erected in 1899 by the
Kemptown Hall Company. It was used as a canmmnity hall and a fraternal lodge,

the Indeperdent Order of Good Templars. In 1915, the building was sold to the
Junior Order of American Mechanics #195. In 1940, the Providence Methodist
Church bought the building for use as a commmnity act1v1t1$ building and was
the site of church suppers, receptions, plays, and concerts. Stephen Galley, a
former pastor of the church, converted the building to a residence in 1956.

Brandenburg Store and Residence (F-7-115), 12529 Fingerboard: The two-story
frame house with three bays and a cross gable has an adjoining flat-roofed
two-story frame store huilding. Both sections have german siding and entry
porches over the center entrance to each sections. The windows are 2/2 and the
gable of the house has a shingled face and dentil cornice with a central
pointed arch window. The roof of the house is composition, with an off-center
chimney. The doorway has a transaom and sidelights and a four-panel door. The
store section has three bays on the first story and two on the second. The
door is a modern replacement, with a plain transom above. The dentil cornice
of the house is repeated on the cornice of the store. The two parts were built
about 1900, possibly by Oscar and Mary (Mollie) Brandenburg who operated the
store until about the late 1930's.

J. Windsor Williams House (F-7-114), 12600 Fingerboard: The two-story Queen
Anne style house was built about 1904-1905 by Williams, the owner of a farm
supply store which formerly stood on Fingerboard Road east of the boundary of
the survey district, the Williams House being the last building on the east end
of the district. The house has an irregular facade with a projecting gable
section on the west end over a polygonal two-story bay. The three-bay
adjoining east section has a narrower gable. A one-story parch with a turned
spindle frieze extends across the three-bay part. The windows are 2/2 with
louvred shutters. The roof is covered with composition material and the siding
is german. A decorative bargeboard edges the soffit of the projecting gable
and the face of the gable itself is covered with pressed metal. A two-story
rear wing extends behind the house. Immediately behind the wing is a metal
windmill which is visible fram the road above the ridge of the house. A frame
meat house with german siding and a frame garage are also on the property.




Kemptown Survey District Survey No. F-7-41
Frederick County

7.4 Description (Continued)

12507, 12511, 12520, 12536, 12539 Fingerboard: These five houses are all of
the same general plan, having two stories, central cross gables, and three or
four bay facades, with one-story porches. Only 12539 retains its original
german siding, the rest having vinyl, asbestos shingle, or other modern
siding. All except one have 2/2 windows, 12539 having 1/1 replacements. The
roofs are usually corrugated or standing seam metal and the chimneys, when
visible, are at the gable ends. These houses represent a very camon
vernacular type which is found throughout Frederick County and dating fram
about 1870 to 1910.

12452 and 12506 Fingerboard: These two houses are also cammon vernacular types
and have many of the same features as the group of five listed above, with the
main exception being the lack of the central cross gable. No. 12452 has three
bays and asbestos shingle siding with a one-story porch and a corrugated metal
roof. A replacement pair of windows occupies one first-story bay and the
secord story sash is 6/6. A rebuilt exterior chimney is on the west gable
end. No. 12506 has alumimm or vinyl siding and a corrugated metal roof. The
one-story porch, like that of 12452, has cast iron supports. The sash is a
cambination of 2/2 and modern 1/1. The four-bay facade has two entrances, a
cammon feature of the German—influenced vernacular house of the 19th century.
These two houses are possibly log structures, although at least partial log
structure is undoubtedly present in several of the group described in the
preceding paragraph, as well as the John T. Lewis House. The two houses
probably date from about 1850.

12518 Fingerboard: This 1-1/2 story frame residence is the only representative
in Kemptown of the bungalow styleardnaymfactbearm—com:rmrtmg
structure, as land records show that the lot was first sold in 1949. However,

its uniqueness in the survey district is worthy of inclusion in the
contributing structures, in spite of the date amd its many exterior
alterations. It has a hipped camposition roof with a hipped dormer on the
south elevation over an integral one-story porch. The porch columns have been
replaced with cast iron supports. The exterior is covered with vinyl siding.
The three-bay south elevation has a center entrance.
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8.1 Significance (Continued)

Urbana Region. The Otho Fout House (F-7-107), built about 1880, has elaborate
scroll-sawn trim on its porches and some of its contemporary outbuildings and double
cross gables. The William Lewis House, 12449 Fingerboard, and the Boyer House,
12501 Fingerboard, feature double cross gables, an element found in several of the
late 19th century houses in Kemptown, as well as in the swrrounding farms. This may
indicate the work of a single contractor or group of related builders in the Urbana
Region whose identity has not yet been discovered. The William Lewis House has an
unusual feature in the widow's walk on the roof peak. The Washington Day House,
12519 Fingerboard, built as a double house in 1887-1888, has decarative diagonal
timbering in the gables of the main roof and the porches, a typical characteristic
of the Queen Anne style.
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